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198501013542 (145998-1))

SEG international Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019,

Principal activities

The Company ls principally engaged [n the businesses of Investment holding and provislon of
management consultancy services, property management, rental of premises, business
advisory sarvicas and educational and training services.

The principal activities and other information relating to the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 17
to the financial statements.

Rasults
Group Company
RM 000 RM'000
Profit net of tax 45,112 34,931
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 45,132 34,931
Non-controlling interests {20} -
45,112 34,931

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provigsions during the financial year
other than as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, except as disclosed in the financial statements, the results of the

operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantially
affected by any item, transaction or avent of a material and unusual nature.

Dividend

The amounts of dividend declarad by the Company since 31 Daecember 2018 were as follows:

RM'000
in respect of the financial year ended 31 Dacember 2019
Interim single tier dividend of RM0.025 per ordinary share each amcunting to
RM30,962,866 declared on 19 November 2019 and paid on 12 December 2018 30,963

The directors do not propose any final dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2019,
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SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Issue of shares and debentures

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") is governed by the By-Laws which were
approved by the shareholders on 18 June 2014. The LTIP was implemented on 1 July 2014 and
shall be in force for @ period of 10 years from the date of implementation. The LTIP comprises
the Employees' Share Option Scheme ("ESOS") and Share Grant Plan ("SGP") for the eligible
directors and employeas of the Company and its subsidiaries ("Eligible Persons”). The SGP is
intended 1o allow the Company to award Performance Share Plan ("PSP") Grant to Eligible
Persons. Based on the By-Laws, the ESOS options and/or PSP Grant will only be granted to the
Eligible Persons upon the LTIP Committee providing the Efigible Persons written confirmation or
notification of the number of ESOS options and/or PSP Grant vested in them. The fulfilment of
the stipulated vesting conditions by the Eligible Persons is not sufficient to vest the ESQS
aptions and/or PSP Grant to the Eligible Persons,

During the financial year, no ESOS options and PSP Grants were granted by the Company
pursuant to the LTIP.

Details of the LTIP are set out in Note 31(d) to the financial statements.

Treasury shares

There were no repurchase of the Company's issued ordinary shares, nor any resale,
cancellation or distribution of treasury shares during the financial year. As at 31 December
2019, the total shares bought back of 26,048,600 are held as treasury shares in accordance
with Section 127(4)(b} of the Companies Act 2016. Further relevant details are disclosed in Note
30 o the financial statements.

Directors

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the beginning of the financial year to
the date of this report are:

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Megat Najmuddin Bin Dato’ Seri Dr. Haji Megat Khas
Tan Sri Clement Hii Chii Kok

Hew Moi Lan

Nicholas Rupert Heylett Bloy

Dato' Seri Mohamed Azahari Bin Mohamed Kamil

Dato' Amos Siew Boon Yeong

Dato Goh Leng Chua

Fua Chye Jin
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SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated in Malaysla)

Directors (cont'd.}

The names of the directors of the Company's subsidiaries in office since the beginning of the
financial year to the date of this report {not including those directors listed above) are:

Chang Poh Yee

Dato’ Pahamin A. Rajab

Datuk Dr Khairiyah Binti Dato' Abd Muttalib
Doreen D'orville

Dr. Tan Saw Poh

Elaine Chegne Pack Onn

Kamalam Pillay Rungapadiachy

Ng Kim Leng

Ong Lee Aei

Professor Dr. Azrin Esmady Bin Ariffin
Professor Dr. Kee Peng Kong
Savinilorna Payandi-Pillay-Ramen

Professor Dr. Samiah Yasmin Binti Abdul Kadir (resigned on 14 August 2019)
Professor Dr. Mohamad Raili Bin Suhaili (appainted on 14 August 2019)
Helen Ngu Moi Hiong (resigned on 4 February 2019)
Leong Kam Sun (resigned on 30 December 2019)
Teng Wai Chong (resigned on 30 December 2019)

Directors' benefita

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Campany was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate other than shares issued and awarded under the Company's LTIP.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to
receive a benafit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments recsived
or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of full time employees of the Company
as disclosed below) by reason of a contract madse by the Company or a related corporation with
any director or with a firm of which the directer is a member, or with a company in which the
director has a substantial financial interest.

Group Company

RM'000 RM'000

Fees 266 266
Salaries and other emoluments 664 664
Bonus 87 B7
Defined contribution plan 81 21
Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind 56 56
1,154 1,154




1985010123542 (145998-U)

S5EG International Bhd
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Indemnity and insurance for directors and officers

The directors and officers of the Group and of the Company are covered under a directors' and
pfficers’ liakility insurance. The insurance has an aggregate limit of RM10,000,000 against any
legal liability, if incurred by the directors and officers of SEG International Bhd ("SEGI") and iis
subsidiaries in discharging of their duties while holding office for SEGI and its subsidiaries
subject to the terms of the policy. The insurance premium for SEGi and its subsidiaries is

RM10,000.

Directors' interests

According to the register of directors' shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the
end of the financial year in shares (and options over shares) in the Company and its related
corporations during the financial year wera as follows:

Numbar of ordinary shares
1.1.2018 Acquired Sold 31.12.2019

The Company

Direct interest
Tan Sri Clement Hii Chii Kok 386,694,479 - - 396,694,479
Tan 3ri Dato’ Seri Magat

Najmuddin Bin Dato’ Seri

Dr. Haji Megat Khas 67,991 - - 67,991
Hew Moi Lan 069,454 - (969,454) -
Dato' Amos Siew Boon Yeang 3,771,428 - - 3,771,428

Number of ordinary shares
1.1.2019 Acquired Sold 31.12.2019
The Company
Indirect Interest
Nicholas Rupert Heylett Bloy & 856,259,514 - - 856,258,514
Tan Sri Clement Hii Chii Kok * 459 565,035 - - 459 565,035

Number of options over ordinary shares

Exerclse/
1.1.2019 Granted Lapsed 31.12.2019

Direct interest
Hew Meoi Lan 306,938 - - 308,839
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors' interests {(cont'd.)

» Deemed interests through Pinnacie Heritage Solutions Sdn. Bhd. ("PHS")'s, direct and
indirect interest in SEGI shares.

* Deemed Interests in such SEGI shares held by PHS pursuant to the shareholders'
agreement dated 25 April 2012 entered between Tan Sri Clement Hii Chii Kok and PHS for
regulating their relationship with one another as shareholders of SEGI.

By virtue of their interests in shares in the Company, Tan Sri Clement Hii Chii Kok and Nicholas
Rupert Heylett Bloy are deemed interested in the shares of the subsidiaries during the financial
year {o the extent that the Company has an interest.

Other than as disclosed, none of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year had
any interest in shares and options over shares in the Company or its related corporations during
the financial year.

Other statutory Information

(a) Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were prepared, the
directors took reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfiad themselves that all known
bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful
debis; and

(i) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in
the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:

(i} the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any
substantial extent; and

(i) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company misleading.

(c) the values alfributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company misleading.

(d) Atthe date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which
weuld render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
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SEG International Bhd
{incorporated in Malaysia)

Other statutory information (cont'd.)
(e} As atthe date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Campany which has arlsen since the
and of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end
af the financial year.

) In the opinion of the directors, except as disclosed in the financial statements:

(i) no contingent or other liability has bacome anforceable or is lkely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve manths after the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their ohligations
when they fall due; and

(fi) noitem, transaction or avent of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial vear and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for the
financial year in which thls report is made,

Auditors

The auditors, Emst & Young PLT, have expressed their willingness to confinue in office.
Auditors’ remuneration are disclosed balow;

Group Company
RM'000 RM"Q00

Auditors' remuneration:
Ernst & Young PLT 466 120
Other auditors 114 -
580 120

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 28 Aprit
2020,

Tan Sri ' Seri Megat Najmuddin Tan Sri Clement Hil Chii Kok
Bin Dato' Seri Dr. Hajfl Magat Khas
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of comprehensive incomea

For the flnancial year ended 31 December 2019

Note
Revenua 4
Cost of services 5
Gross profit
tntarest income 8
Other income 7
Distribiution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs B8
Profit before tax 9
Income tax expense 12
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)lincome:

Items that cannot be reclassified
to profit or loss:

Fair value loss thraugh other
comprehensive income ("FVOCI")
equity instruments

Item that can be reclassified
to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation reserve
Other comprehenslve {loss)income,
net of tax
Total comprehensive
income for the year

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
243,972 252,410 60,366 61,802
(83,671)  (85,388)  (17,483) (22,844)
160,301 167,021 42,873 39,058
1,112 944 3,202 1,799
8,055 8,838 1,684 1,874
(11,111) {9,651) (293) (205)
(50,055)  (60,969) {3,200) (3,042)
(48,627)  (56,309) (1,581) (3,583)

58,775 49,875 42765 35,901
(9,138) (2,094) {7,636) (2,192)
49,637 47,781 35,129 33,709
(4,525) (5,660) {198) (5)
45112 42 121 34,931 33,704
(80) (80) - -

(84) 596 - -
{164) 508 - -

44 948 42 627 34,931 33,704

14
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SEG International Bhd
{Incerporated In Malaysia)

Statements of comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 (cont'd.)

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note  RM'000 RM'000 RM'00D RM'000
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 45,132 42,158 34,931 33,704
Non-controiling interests (20) {37) - -
45,112 42121 34,931 33,704
Total comprehensive Income
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 44,968 42,664 34,931 33,704
Non-controlling interests (20) (37) - -
44,948 42 627 34,931 33,704
Earnings per share attributable
{o equity holders of the Company
- Basic 13 364sen  3.40 sen
- Diluted 13 384sen  3.40sen

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the
financial statements.

16
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statemants of financial position
As at 31 December 2019

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Inveatment in subsidiaries
Other investment

Receivables

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Receivables

Tax recoverable

Other financial asset

Deposits, cash and bank balances

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Payables

Coniract liabilities
Provisions

Current tax liabilities

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Nota

15
16
17
18
20
21
28

19
20

22
23

29
21
26
27
24

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'00¢Q RM"000
92,092 103,010 6,407 6,436
27,624 27 527 - -
- - 78,770 78,615
740 820 - -
1,350 1.815 21,772 21,772
122,856 - 92,228 -
7,522 9,692 1,573 1,673
252 084 142 864 200,750 108,396
95 102 - -
31,101 22 572 35,318 41,327
1,152 7,021 - 821
273 269 273 269
58,692 53,669 25,502 20,127
91,313 83,633 65,083 62,544
343,397 226 497 265,843 170,840
9,000 9,636 9,000 9,000
23,283 - 13,540 -
58,696 58,137 26,415 20,865
29,687 31,623 - -
610 - - -
255 464 198 -
119,540 99,860 49,153 29,865
(28,227)  (16,227) 15,940 32,679

16
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of financlal position
As at 31 Decembar 2019 (cont'd.)
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM'000 RM'0D0 RM'000 RM'000

Nan-current liabilitias

Borrowings 25 16,250 25,881 16,250 25,250
Lease liabilitles 21 109,945 - 85,257 -
Contract liabilities 27 1,308 209 - -
Payables 26 2,671 4,060 2,324 1,068
Deferred tax liabilities 28 1,253 4327 - -

131,425 35,177 103,831 268,318
Total liabilities 250,965 135,037 152,984 56,183
Net assets 92 432 91,460 112,859 114,757

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital 29 147,707 147,707 147,707 147,707
Treasury shares 30 (37,488)  (37,486) (37,486) (37,4886)
Reserves 3 {16,769} (17,761) 2,638 4,536

93,452 92,450 112,859 114,757
Non-confrolling interests (1,020} {1,000) - -
Total equity 02,432 91,460 112,859 114,757
Total equity and liabilities 343,397 226,497 265,843 170,840

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the
financial statements.

17
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated In Malaysia)

Statements of cash flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

Profit bafore tax

Adjustments for
impairment loss of investment in
subsidiaries
Allowance for ECL on:
- frade receivables
- amount due from a subsidiary
Unwinding of discount on amount due
from a subsidiary
Unrealised foreign currency exchange
loss
Dividend income:
Interest income
Reversal of allowance for ECL
on amounts due from a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Interest expense
Bad debts written off
Bad debts written back
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
gquipmeant
Impairment loss of property, plant and
gquipment
Prapertty, plant and equipment
written off
Amortisation of development costs
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Share-based payment expense
Operating cash flows before changes in
working capital
Changes in working capital
Decrease in inventories
(Increase)Decrease in trade and other
receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other
payables
Decrease in amount due from subsidiaries
Cash generated from operations

Group Company

2019 2018 2018 2018

Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
40 637 47,781 35,129 33,709

9,17 - - - 1,190
9,20(cy (1,205) 2,685 - -
8, 20(b) - - - 819
8 - - - (86}

9 130 808 - 485
4 (58) (48) (35,664) (34,211)

6 (1,112) (944) (3,282) {(1,713)

7 - - - (150)
7,9 (33) (33) * -
8 9,138 2,084 7,636 2,192

9 - 6,256 - 43
7.9 - - - (597)
g21(a) 21,714 - 13,556 “
9,15 11,625 12,196 136 161
9, 15 926 - - -
9,18 479 6 - -
9, 16(b) 3 17 - -
9, 17(a) - 356 - "
(22) 432 (22) 432

91,222 71,608 17,479 2,074

7 7 - -

(6,989)  (21,007) (479) 196

(4,453} 7.397 16 27

- - 10,980 8,402

79,787 58,005 27,996 10,699

21
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of cash flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 (cont'd.)

Group Company
2019 2018 2018 2018
Note RM000 RM'000 RM'0Q0 RM 000

Cash generated from operations (cont'd.) 79,787 58,005 27,996 10,689
Interast paid {1,654) (2,094} {1,646) (2,112)
Nst taxes refunded/(paid) 231 (3,335) 821 498

Net cash generated from operating
activities 78,364 52,576 27171 9,086

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 1,112 975 1,077 839

Dividend received 58 46 35,664 34,211

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 45 82 - -

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (4,962) (3,629) (107) (35)

Net cash inflows for disposal of
subsidiaries 17(a) - 3 - *

(Placement)/Withdrawal of other investments (4) 7,573 (6} 7,573

Net cash {used in)/generated from [nvesting
activities {3,751) 5,060 36,628 42 688

Cash flows from flnancing activities
Repayment of hire purchase and

finance lease payables (1,035) (1,067} - -
Payment of principal portion of lease

liabilities (28,592) - (18,481) -
Repayment of term loan (9,000) (9,000) (9,000) (9,000}
Dividend paid (30,963) (77,396} (30,963) {77,396)
Withdrawal of deposits with

licensed banks and financial institutions

with maturity of more than three months 3,637 1,078 3,642 1,083
Net cash used in financing activities (66,053)  (86,385) _ (54,882) (85,313)
Net increasef{decreasse) in cash and

cash equivalents 8,560 (28,759) 8917 (33,539)
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year 45 002 73,761 11,610 45,149
Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year 23 53 662 45 002 20,627 11,610

*  Less than RM1,000

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the flnancial year ended 31 December 2019

1. Corporate information

SEG International Bhd ("SEGI" or "The Company”) is a public limited liability company,
incorporated and domiciled in Mafaysia, and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad. The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is
located at 6th Floor, SEGi University, No. 9, Jalan Teknologi, Taman Sains Selangor, Kota
Damansara, PJU §, 47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of
management consultancy services, property management, rental of premises, business
advisory services, educational and training services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 17.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 28 April 2020.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS"), International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and the requirements of the Companies Act
2016 in Malaysia. At the beginning of the current financial year, the Group and the
Company adopted new and amended MFRS which are mandatory for financial
periods heginning on or after 1 January 2019 as described fully in Note 2.2.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"} and all values are
raunded to the nearest thousand ('000) except when otherwise indicated.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the pravious financial
year except on 1 January 2019, the Group and the Company adopted the following
new and amended MFRSs mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019,

Effective for
annual periods
beglinning on

Description or after

Amendments to MFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative 1 January 2019
Compensation

MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

Amendments to MFRS 119 Plan Amendment, Curtailment 1 January 2019
ar Settlement

Amendments to MFRS 128 Leng-term Interests in Associates 1 January 2019
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle 1 January 2019

IC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 1 January 2019

The adoption of the above MFRS and Amendments to MFRS did not have any
significant effect on the financial performance or position of the Group and of the
Company except as discussed below:

MFRS 16 Leases

MFRS 16 supersedes MFRS 117 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and S1C-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the statement
on financial position.

Lessor accounting under MFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from MFRS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in MFRS 117. Therefore, MFRS 18 does not have an impact for
leases where the Group and the Company are the lessar,

The Group and the Company adopted MFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 January 2018. Under this
method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or
contains a lease at 1 January 2019. Instead, the Group applied the standard only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying MFRS 117 and IFRIC 4 at
the date of initial application.
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2,

Summary of significant accounting policles {cont'd.)

2.2

Changes in accounting policles {cont'd.)

MFRS 16 Leages (contd.)

The Group and the Company have lease contracts for various items of property and
other equipment., Before the adoption of MFRS 18, the Group and the Company
classified each of its leases at the inception date as either finance lease or an
operating lease. Refer to Note 2.18 for the accounting policy prior to 1 January 2019.

Upon adoption of MFRS 16, the Group and the Company applied a single recognition
and measurement approach for all leases except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. Refer to Note 2.18 for the accounting policy baginning 1 January
2019. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical
expedients, which have been applied by the Group and the Company.

Leases previously classified as operating leases

The Group and the Company recegnised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
those leases previously classified as operating leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were
recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always been
applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based on the
amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued
lease payments praviously recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Group and the Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein
they:

» used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

+ relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the
date of initial application;

+ applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends
within 12 months of the date of initlal application;

+ excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assets
at the date of initial application; and

+ used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained
options to extend or terminate the lease.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policles {cont'd.}
2.2 Changes In accounting policies {cont'd.)

MFRS 16 Leases (cont'd.)

The effect of adoption MFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 are, as follows:

As at As at
31 December MFRS 16 1 January
2018 adjustments 2019
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  {a) 103,010 (4,868) 98,122
Right-of-use assets (a) - 136,786 136,786
103,610 131,898 234,808
Non-currant liabilities
Lease liabilities (b) - 125,073 125,073
Borrowings (b) 25,881 (631) 25,25()
25,881 124,442 150,323
Currant liabilities
Lease liabilities (b} - 20,464 20,464
Provisions (c) - 619 619
Borrowings (b) 9,636 (636) 2,000
9,636 20,447 30,083
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 42,664 (12,991) 29,873
Non-controlling interests (37) - {(37)
(d} 42 627 (12,931) 29,636
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2,2 Changes In accounting policies (cont'd.)

MFRS 18 Le cont'd.

The affect of adoption MFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 are, as follows: (cont'd.)

Company

Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets

Non-current lfabilities
Lease liabilities

Current llabllities
Lease liabilities

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the
Company

Based on the above, as at 1 January 2019:

Note

As at Asg at

31 Decomber MFRS 16 1 January
2018 adjustments 2019

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

- 105,784 105,784

- 98,797 88,797

- 12,831 12,831

33,704 {5,844) 27,860

(&) Right-of-use assets were recognised and presented separately in the statements
of financial position. This includes the leasehold property of RM4,800,000 was
reclassified from Property, plant and equipment.

(b) Lease liabilities were recognised and included under financial liabilities. This
includes the hire purchase recognised previously under borrowings amounted to
RM1,267,000 that was reclassified to lease liabilities.

{c} The provision of dismantling costs is recognised as part of the right-of-use

assets,

(d) Retained earnings and non-controlling interests decreased due to the net impact

of these adjustments.
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2, Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.2

2.3

Changes in accounting policles (cont'd.)

MFRS 16 Leases (cont'd.)

Tha laase liabilities as at 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease
commitments as at 31 Decembar 2018, as follows:

Group Company

RM"000 RM'000
Azsets
Qperating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018 163,603 138,775
Less .
Commitments relating to leases of low value assets {(179) -
163,424 138,775
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate
as at 1 January 2019 - 5.4% 5.4%
Discounted operating lease commitments
as at 1 January 2019 133,524 111,628
Add:
Lease payments relating to renewal pericds not
included in operating lease commitments
as at 31 December 2018 10,746 -
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 144,270 111,628

Standards issued hut not yet effactive

The standards and interpretations that are issued but net yet effeclive up to the date
of issuance of the Group's and of the Company’s financial statemants are disclosed
below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these standards, if applicable,
when they become effective.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

Description or after
Amendments to MFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 29, MFRS 138 and MFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchrmark Reform 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 101 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 108 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
Amendments to MFRS 101 Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current 1 January 2022
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribution of Deferred

Assels between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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2,

Summary of signiflcant accounting policies {cont'd.)

2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective {(cont'd.)

2.4

The above standards and interpretations do not have impact on the financial
statements of the Group and the Company.

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and basis of consolldation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are ail entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is expesed to, or has rights to, variable retums
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less accurmulated impairment losses. On disposal of such

investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Basis of consolldation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The Group controls an
investee if, and only if, the Group has:

(i) power over the investes {such as existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee),

(i} exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee,
and

(i) the ability to usa its power over the investee to affect its raturns.

Generally, thers is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. To suppert this presumption and when the Group has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investees, including:

(i the contractual arrangement(s} with the other vote holders of the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(lii) the Group's voting rights and petential voting rights.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.4 Subsidiaries and basis of consolldation (cont'd.}
(b) Basis of consolidation (cont'd.)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investes if facts and
circumnstances indicate that there are changes to one or meore of the three
elements of control. Consclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year included in the consolidated financial statements
fram the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit ar loss and each component of ather comprehensive income ("OCI") are
attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-contrelling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries fo
bring their accounting policies to be in line with the Group's accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and lizbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

if the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets
{including goodwill), liabllities, non-controlling interest and other components of
equity, while any resultant gain or loss Is recognised in profit or loss. Any
investment retained is recognised at fair valte.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controiling
interests in the agquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as
at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.4 Subsidiaries and basis of consclidation (cont'd.)

(b} Basis of consolidation (cont'd.)

Business combinations and goodwill (cont'd.)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value
of the acquirer's previausly held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through prefit or loss.

Goadwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling
inferests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of
the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the pracedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of
net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain
is recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
buginess combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units ("CGU") that are expected fo henefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are
assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances s measured based
on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the CGU

retained.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2006 are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign
operations and translated in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.7{c).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments which arose on acquisitions of foreign
operation before 1 January 2006 are deemed to be assets and liabilities of the
Company and are recorded in RM at the rates prevailing at the date of
acquisition.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.6 Transactlons with non-controlling interests

2.6

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly
or indirectly, to owners of the Company, and is presented separataly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equily allributable to
owners of the Company.

Changes in the Company owners' ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances,
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference batween
the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Currant versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

(i) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle;

(i) held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(i) expected 1o be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting pericd.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

{iy itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

(iiy itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at lsast
twelve months after the reporting pericd.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.}

2,7 Foreign currency

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measurad
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the antity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consclidated financial statements are
presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM)}, which is also the Company's functional
currency.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial
recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at historical cost are transiated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date whan
the fair value was determinad.

Exchange differences arising on the settlerment of monetary items or on
translating monetary items at the raporting date are recognised in profit or loss
except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the
Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency
translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency translation reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign
operation,

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the changa
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in QCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCIl or
profit loss, respectively).
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.7

2.8

Foreign currency (cont'd.)
(¢) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RM at the rate
of exchange ruling at the reporting date and income and expenses are translated
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differances
arising on the translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the profit or loss.,

Goodwill and fair vaiue adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign
operations are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are
recorded in the functional currency of the foreign operations and translated at the
closing rate at the reporting date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. Following initial
acquisition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated armortisation
and any accumulated impairment logses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is
reflected in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditura is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Research and development costs
All research costs are recegnised in the profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and deferred
only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of compieting the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the assel will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the ability to
measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditures which do not meet these criteria are expansed off when incurred.

Davelopment costs, considered to have finita useful livas, are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceading ten years. Impairment is
assessed whenever therg is an indication of impairment and the amortisation pariod
and method are also reviewed at least at each reporting date.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group and
the Company depreciate them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewlse, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recegnised in profit or loss as
incurred, The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset
after its use is included in the cost of tha respective asset if the recognition criteria for
a provision are met.

Freehold land has an infinite useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Depreciation
is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, at
the following annual rates:

Leasehold land over the lease term of 779 years
Buildings 2%
Computer hardware and sollware 16% - 33%
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 10% - 20%
Library books and manuals 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Capital work-in-progress are not depreciated as these assets are not yet avaifable for
use.

The residuzal value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is deracognised upon disposal or when na
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the prefit or loss in the year the asset is
deracognised.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.10 Impairment of non-flnancial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's ("CGU") fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverabls amount is
determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markst assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation muitiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calcuilations, which are prepared separately for gach of the Group's CGU to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally
covering a period of five years. A long term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for properties praviously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For such
properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
ravaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset's or CGLPs recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal Is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the camying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a

revaluation increase.
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2,

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.10

2.1

212

2.13

Impairment of non-financlal assets (cont'd.)

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December 2018 and alse when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of gach
CGU (or group of CGL8) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average method. Cost includes the cost of
purchases and incidentals in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposiis,
and short-term deposits which have a maturity of three months or less, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are
subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. These also inciude bank
overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group's and of the Company's cash
management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating fo a provision is presented in
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.14 Financial instrumants

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial assets

()

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") and
fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group and the
Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initiafly
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under MFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payment of principal
and interest ("SPPI"Y' on the principal amount outstanding. This assesament
is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level,

The Group and the Company's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how they manage their financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will resuilt
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a
time frame established by regulation or convention in the markel place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, such as the date that
the Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset,
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.14 Financial instruments (cont'd.)
(a) Financial assets {cont'd.)
(ii)) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments),

- Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments);

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments);

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group and the Company measure financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to
hold financiat asset in order to collect contractual cash fiows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount ocutstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
sffective interest rate ("EIR") method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

The Group and the Company's financial assets at amortised cost include
trade and other receivables and deposits, cash and bank balances.
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2.14 Financlal Instruments (cont'd.)
{a) Financial assets (cont'd.)
{il} Subsequent measurement (cont'd.)
Financial as fair value through OCI (debt instruments

The Group and the Company measure debt instruments at FVOCI if both of
tha following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through QCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in OCIL. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

The Group’s and the Company's debt instruments at fair value through OCI
includes investments in quoted equity shares included under other non-
current financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through QG| {equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group and the Caompany can elact to classify
irravocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair
value through OC| when they meet the definition of equity under MFRS 132
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or
loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Group and the Company benefit from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial assat, in which case, such gains are recorded in
QCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCIl are not subject
to impairment assessment.
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214 Financial Instruments (cont'd.)
(a} Financial assets (cont'd.)

(ii) Subsequent measurement (cont'd.)

Financial assets designated at fair value through QCI {equity instriments
cont'

Unquoted shares in Malaysia previously classified as available-for-sale
financial assets is now classified and measured as fair value through OCI.
The Group and the Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed
equity investments under this category as it intends to hold these
investments for the foreseeable future. There was no impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss for these investments in prior periods,

Financial assets at fair valug through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or logs Include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily reguired to be
measured at fair valus, Financlal assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
Irrespective of the business model, Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or foss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair vaive with net changss in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes investment security under other financia!l asset.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.}
2.14 FInanclal instruments {cont'd.)
(a) Financial assets (cont'd.)
(ifl) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (such as removed
from the statements of financial position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group and the Company have fransferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Group and the Company have
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b} the
Group and the Company have neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but have transferred
cantrol of the asset.

When the Group and the Company have transferred their rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or have entered into a 'pass-through' arrangement,
they evaluate if and to what extent they have retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When they have neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's and of the Company's
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group and the
Company also recognise an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group and the Company have retained.

Continuing involvemant that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transfarred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrylng amount of
the assst and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the
Company could ba required to repay.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {cont'd.)

2.14 Financial instruments (cont'd.)

(b} Financial liabilities

{0

(i}

(1ii)

Initial recognition and measurement

Firancial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilitles are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's and the Company’s financial fiabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsaquent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

Darecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expired. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another frem the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or madification is ireated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in statements of profit or loss.
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2.14 Financial instruments {cont'd.)
{c) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the statements of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for alf debt instruments carried at amortised cost and fair valus through QCI.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group and the Company
expect to receive, discounted at an approximation of the ariginal EIR. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the gale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recagnised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months {(a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit rsk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Group and the Company apply a simplified appreach in
caleulating ECLs. Therefore, the Group and the Company do not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group and the Company have established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Other financial assets including investment securities, short-term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group and
the Company consider these counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flows, and are of low cradit risk. The impairment
provision is determined based on the 12-month ECL.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policles {cont'd.)

2.15

2.16

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd.)

The Group and the Company consider a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 30 to 180 days past due. Howaver, in certain cases, the Group and the
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group and the Company are unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group and the Company. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of that asset.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities fo prepare the asset
for its infended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs
are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially
completed for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recegnised in profit or loss in the period thay are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the
Company incurred in connecticn with the borrowing of funds.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Short term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an
gxpenss in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees
of the Group and the Company. Short term accumulating compensated
absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered
by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences,
and short term non-accumulating compensated absences stich as sick leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

(b} Defined contribution plans

The Group and the Company participate in the national pension schemss as
defined by the laws of the countries in which it has operations. The Malaysian
companias in the Group and the Company make contributions to the Employees
Provident Fund ("EPF") in Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme.
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related service is performed.
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Summary of significant accounting pollcies (cont'd.)
2.17 Employee benefits (cont'd.)
(¢} Employee share option plans

The Company implemented its Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") on 1 July
2014, which comprises of the Employses' Share Option Scheme ("ES0S") and
Share Grant Plan ("SGP") for the eligible directors and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Employees of the Group and the Company
receive remuneration in the form of share options as consideration for services
rendered.

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair vaiue of the opticns at the date on which the options are
granted using an appropriate valuation model. This cost is recegnised in profit or
logs, with a corresponding increase in the employee share option reserve over
the vesting period. The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting date
uriil the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group's best estimate of the number of options that will uitimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for options that do not ultimately vest, except for
options where vesting is conditional upon a market or nen-vesting condition,
which are treated as vested irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vasting condttion is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied. The employee share option reserve is transfarred to
retained profits upon expiry of the share options. When the options are
exercised, the amployee share option reserve is transferred to share capital if
new shares are issued, or to treasury shares if the options are satisfied by the
reissuance of treasury shares.

2.18 Leases

Effactive after to 1 January 2018

The Group and the Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. That is, if the contract convays the right to control the use of an
identified assat for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

{a} As lessee

The Group and the Company apply a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group and the Company recognise lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.18 Leases (cont'd.)

Effectlve after to 1 January 2018 (cont'd.)

(a) As [essee (cont'd.)

(i)

{ii)

Right-of-use assets

The Group and the Company recognise right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Property 110 8 years
Plant & equipment 2to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group and the Company at
the end of the laase term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the
accounting policies in Note 2.10 impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease liabilitles

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group and the Company
recognise lease liabilities measured at the present vaiue of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group and
the Company exercising the opticn to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expensas
(uniess they are incurred to preduce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.18 Leases (cont'd.)

Effective after to 1 January 2019 {cont'd.)

(a) As lassee (cont'd.)

(i)

(i)

Lease liabilitles (cont'd.)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group and the
Company use their incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in tha lease term, a change
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future paymenis resuiting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease paymeants) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities in Note 35.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group and the Company apply the shori-term [ease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases such as those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or lass from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
The assessment of whether an underlying asset is of low value is performed
on an absolute basis and is not affected by the size, nature or
circumstances of the lessee. lLease payments cn shori-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis gver tha lease tarm.

(b} As lessor

Leases in which the Graup and the Company do not fransfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-iine basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statements of comprehensive
income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recoghised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned,
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.18

219

Leases (cont'd.)

Effective prior to 1 January 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for
whether fulfiment of the arrangemant is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

As lessece

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A
lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to
the Group and the Company are classified as & finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception
date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there s no

reasonable certainty that the Group and the Company will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated

useaful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided
by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.
Ordinary share capital and share Issuance expenses

An equity instruments is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group and of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary sharas
are equity instruments.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable

incremental transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on
ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared,
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2,20 Treasury shares

2.21

The Company’s cwn equity instruments, which are reacquired (treasury shares) are
recagnised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount of treasury shares and the
cansideration received, if reissued, is recognised directly in equity. Voting rights
related to treasury shares are nullified for the Company and no dividends are
allocated to them respectively.

Revenue from contracts with customers and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services or
goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group and the Company expect to be entitled in exchange for those
services or goods.

The Group and the Company satisfy a performance obligation and recognise revenue
over time if the Group's and the Company's performance:

- do not creata an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Company
and have an enforceabie right to payment for performance completed to-date; or

- create or enhance an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

- provide benefits that the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes as the
Group and the Company perform.

- for performance obligations where any one of the above conditions is not met,
revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is
satisfied.

Revenue from confracts with customers and other income are measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually

defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The followings describes the
performance obligations in contracts with customers:

(a) Educational services
Educational services revenue comprise:
(i) Tuition fees

Tuition fees are recognised over a period of time when the services are
renderad.
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2.21 Revenue from contracts with customers and other income (cont'd.)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e}

(f)

Educational services (cont'd.)

(i} Facility fees
In the pravious financial years, the Group recognised student's faciiity fees
at a point in time. During the current financial year, the Group changed the
accounting policy whereby the student's facility fees are recognised over a
period of time when the services are rendered in accordance to the new
standard.

(iiil) Administration fees
Administration fees from application services are recognised when the
services are rendered at a paint in time,

Sale of goods

Sales are recognised net of returns and trade discount when the services or
goods are renderad at a peint in time.

Management fee

Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is

accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of comprehensive income due to its operating nature.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's and the Company's right to
receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

Interest income

Interest income recognised on an accrual basis that reflects the effective yield of
the asset.
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2,21 Revenue from contracts with customers and other income (cont'd.)

(9)

(h)

Contract liabilities arising from revenue recognition

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group and the Company
transfer the related goods or services. Caontract liabilities are recognised as
revenua when the Group and the Company perform under the contract such as
transfers control of the related goods or services to the customaer.

Cost to obtain a contract

The Group pays agent commission to its agent for certain contracts that they
abtain for number of students recruited. The Group applies the optionai practical
expedient to immediately expanse costs to obtain a contract if the amortisation
period of the asset that would have been recognised is one year or less. As
such, sales commissions are immediately recognised as an expense.

2.22 Income taxes

(a)

(b)

Currant income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recoversd from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group and the
Company operate and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is racognised in
aquity and not in the statement of profit or loss. Management pericdically
gvaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferrad tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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2.22 Income taxes {cont'd.)

(b) Defarred tax (cont'd.)

Deferred tax is provided using the liabilty method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitles and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all tempaorary differences, except:

-  whare the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and Interests in joint ventures, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differances,
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses ¢an be utilised, except:

- where the deferrad tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
i5 not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differances will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of defarred tax assets is reviewed at sach reporting date
and recduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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2.22 Incoma taxes (cant'd.)
{b) Defarred tax (cont'd.)

Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting dste.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and defarred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

deferred taxes relate to the sama taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the
criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new
information about facts and circumstances change. The adjustment is either
treated as a reduction in goodwill {as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it
was incurred during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss,

2.23 Contingencies
A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrance or hon-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i} It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; or

(i) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient refiability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the statement of financial
position of the Group, except for contingent fabilities assumed in a business
combination that are present obligations and which the fair values can be reliably
determined.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

2.24

2.25

Segment reporting

Segment reporting in the financial statements are presented on the same basis as it
is used by managament internally for evaluating cperating segment performance and
in deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments. Operating segments
are distinguishable components of the Group that engage in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other compaonents. An operating
segment is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how
to allocate resources and in assessing performanca, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

All transactions between aperating segments are conducted based on mutually
agreed allocation bases, with intra-segment revenue and costs being seliminated.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included In
determining businass segment performancs.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
fiability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- Inthe principal market for the assst or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another markat participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and

for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2. Summary of slgnificant accounting policies {cont'd.)

2.25

2.26

Fair value measurement {cont'd.)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
stalements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowsst level input that is significant to the fair valus measurement as a

whole:
Level 1: Quected (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest [evel input that Is significant to the
fair value measurement directly or indirectly observabla

Level 3: Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
hasis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
pericd.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group and the Company have
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained

above.
Financial guarantee contracts

A financlal guarantee contract is a contract that requires the isstler to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are
recognised as income In profit or loss over the period of the guarantee. If the debtor
fails to make payment relating to financial guarantee contract when it is due and the
Company, as the issuer, is required to reimburse the holder for the associated loss,
the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the amount initiaily
recognised less cumulative amortisation.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

3.

2.27 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.
Where the grant related to an asset, the fair value is recognised as deferred capital
grant in the statement of financial position by daducting the grant in arriving at the
carrying amount of assets when the asset is ready for its intended use.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions,
with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this
favourable interest Is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is
initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured
as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds
received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy in Note
2.14(b).

Significant accounting estimates and judgemaents

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liahilities
affected in future periods.

(a)

Critlcal Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s and the Company's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination
options as lessee

The Group and the Company determine the lease term as the non-cancellable
term of the Isase, together with any periods covared by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably cerfain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
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3.

Significant accounting estimates and judgemants {cont'd.)

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies {(cont'd.)

{I)

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination
options as lessee (cont'd.)

The Group and the Company apply judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain whether or not te exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all reievant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencemant date, the Group and the Company reassess the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that ig within ite control
and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the cption to renew or to
terminate such as the construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased assel.

The Group and the Company included the renewal paricd as part of the lease
term for leases with shorter non-cancellahble period such as three to five years,
The Group and the Company typically exercise its option to renew for these
leases because there will be a significant negative effect on production if a
replacement asset is not readily available.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amecunts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
yaar are discussed below:

Impairment of goodwill and investment in subsidiaries

(i)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of business combination over the
Group's share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary's identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such
indicators exist. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-
genarating units ("CGU") to which goodwill is allocated.

Investment in subsidiaries

The Company reviews its investment in subsidiaries when there are indicators of
impairment. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an
investment with its recoverable amount. Significant estimation is required in
determining the recoverable amount.
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3. Significant accounting estimates and Judgements (cont'd.)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd.)

(ii} Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd.)

When value-in-use calculation are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details of
goodwill and investment in subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 18(a) and Note
17{b) respectively.

(lil) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate to measure lease liabilities

The Group and the Company cannot readily determine the interast rate implicit in
the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group and the Company
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use assets in a similar economic
anvironment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group and the Company
‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
avaitable or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease. The Group and the Company estimates the IBR using observable
inputs such as markst interest rates when available and is required to make
certain entity-speacific estimates.

59



198501013542 (145998-U}

SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

4, Revenue

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Educational services rendered 242 483 250,737 - -

Non-aducational services rendered 6834 603 732 732

Management fee - - 5,027 0,527

Rental income 366 402 18,043 17,432

Dividend incoma 58 46 35,664 34,211
Sale of eyecare and healthcare

related products 451 622

243,972 202,410 60,366 61,902

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods or services transferred
- transfaerred at a point in time 16,714 16,843 42,323 44,470
- transferrad over time 227,258 235,667 18,043 17,432
243972 252, 410 60,366 61,802

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Educational services rendered - Contract liabilities (Note 27)

Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Within one year 29,687 31,623
More than one year 1,306 209

30,993 32,532

5. Cost of services

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RN'000 RM'000 RM'000
Salaries and related expensas 64,054 67,517 - -
Other direct costs 19,617 17,872 17,493 22 844

83671 85,389 17,493 22 B44
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5. Cost of services (cont'd.)

Included in other direct costs are
the followings:

Expense relating to short-term leases
of premises

Operating lease rentals in respect
of leased premises

Agent fee

Incentive to staff

Students' direct expenses

Sharing and royalty fees

Library, lab and workshop expanses

Management fees

Cost of goods sold

Depreciation of right-of-use-assets

Others

6. Interestincome

Interest income from:
Subsidiaries
Fixed deposits

Unwinding of discount on amount due
from a subsidiary

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RMW'000 RM'000
285 - 285 -
- - . 19,545
13,047 10,857 - -
1,15€ 1,157 - -
1,629 1,440 - -
1,348 1,784 - -
840 927 - -
- 200 3,652 3,289
188 238 - -
- - 13,556 -
1,121 1,469 - -
19,617 17,872 17,493 22 844
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RNM'000 RM'000
- - 2,202 805
1,112 944 1,090 908
- - - 86
1,112 944 3,292 1,799
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7.

Other Income

N o.te

Hostel relatad income

Student depesits forfeited

(3ain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value gain on other financial
assets

Laboratory fees

Bad debt written back on
amounts due to subsidiaries

Accounting service fees from
subsidiaries

Reversal of allowance for ECL
on amounts due from a
subsidiary

Others

Finance costs

Interest expense on:
Lease liabilities
Hire purchase liabilities
Overdraft
Term loan
Loans from subsidiary companies

9

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
4,331 3,904 - -
1,031 1,453 - ~
33 33 * .
- 162 4 152
- 33 - -
- - - 597
- - 960 860
- - - 150
2,660 3,264 720 15
8,055 8,639 1,684 1,874
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018

RM"000 RM'000

RM'000 RM'000

7,484 . 5,630 -
134 78 . -

- - ; 12
1,520 2,016 1,620 2,016
] : 486 164
9.138 2.094 7 636 2,192

62



198501013542 {145998-U)

SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Profit before tax

The following amounts have been includad in arriving at profit befors tax:

Note

Auditors' remunerations:
- current year
- Ernst & Young PLT
- pverseas member firms of
Emst & Young PLT
- pther auditors
- under provision in prior years
- Ernst & Young PLT
- other auditors
Non-audit fees for services
rendered by:
- Ernst & Young PLT
- othars
- under provision in prior years
to Emnst & Young PLT
Employee henefits expense 10
Expense related to short-term
leases in respect of;
- premises
- hostels
- equipments
Operating lease rentals in respect
of lsased.
- premises
- hostels
- gquipments
Foreign currency exchange loss/
(gain): -
- realised
- unrealised
Depreciation and amortisation of:
- right-of-use assets 21(a)
- property, plant and
eguipment 15
- development costs 16
Gain on disposal of:
- property, plant and
equipment 7
- subsidiaries 17(a)

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
411 451 120 120
37 37 - -
114 110 - -
18 38 - -
w 4 - -
58 79 82 92
101 a6 - -
2 7 1 7
103,025 107,767 1,751 1,435
303 - 285 -
345 - - -
163 - - .
- 27,408 - 19,545
- 1,600 - -
- 487 - -
58 29 170 {158)
130 808 - 485
21,714 - 13,556 -
11,625 12,198 136 161
3 17 - -
(33) (33) * -
- 356 - *
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9.

10.

Profit befors tax (cont'd.)

The following amounts have been included in arriving at profit before tax: (cont'd.)

Note
{Reversal)/Allowance for ECL on:
- trade receivables 20(c)
- amounts due from a
subsidiary 20(b)
Allowance for impairment loss of:
- investment in subsidiares 17(b)
- property, plant and
equipment 15
Wite offs of;
- property, plant and
equipment 15
- bad debis
Bad debt written back on
amouints due to subsidiaries 7
* Less than RM1,000
Employee benefits expense
Note
Employee benefits expense: 9

Salaries, wages, bonuses and
allowances

Defined contribution plan

Social security contributions

Share-based payment expense

Other banefits

Group Company
2019 2018 2018 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
{1,205} 2,885 - -
- - - 619
- - - 1,190
826 - - -
479 6 - -
- 6,256 - 43
- - - (597)
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
88,821 52,697 1,538 1,472
9,494 10,254 153 156
097 989 2 ?
(22) 432 23 (2158)
3,735 3,395 35 20
103,025 107,787 1,751 1,435

Included in employee henefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive
directors' remuneration amounting t¢ RM832,000 (2018: RM803,00Q) and RM832,000

(2018: RM803,000), respectively as further disclosed in Note 11.
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11. Diractors' remuneration

The dstails of remuneration received and receivable by directors of the Group and the
Company during the year are as follows:

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'0D0 RM'000 RM'000

Executive/Non-Executive:

Salaries and other emoluments 664 642 564 642

Bonus 87 75 87 75

Defined contribution plan 81 86 81 86
Total executive/Non-Executive

directors’

remuneration excluding benefits-

in-kind 832 803 832 803
Estimated money value of

benefits-in-kind 56 31 56 31
Total executive/Non-Executive

diractors'

remuneration inctuding benefits-

in-kind 888 834 888 834

Non-executive:
Fees 266 266 266 266

Total directors’ remuneration
including benefits-in-kind 1,154 1,100 1,154 1,100

The number of directors of the Group and the Company whose total remuneration during
the years fell within the following bands is analysed below:

Number of directors

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Executive directors:
RM100,001 — RM150,000 1 1 1 1
RM650,001 = RM700,000 - 1 - 1
RM700,01 — RM750,000 1 - ] -
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11. Directors' remuneration {cont'd.)

Number of dirsctors

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Non-executive dirsctors:
Below RM50,001 2 z 2 2
RM50,001 — RM100,000 4 4 4 4

12. Income tax expense

The major companents of income tax for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
are as follows:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Nofe RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Current income tax;
Malaysia income tax 5,783 8,104 198 -
Foreign income tax 222 274 - -
(Qver)/Under provision of
Malaysian income tax in

respect of prior years {576) 162 - 5
5,429 8,540 198 5
Deferrad tax: 28
Crigination and reversal of
temporary differences 1,070 (2,662) 1,438 -
Over provision in respect
of prior years {1,874) {218) (1,438) -

(904) (2,880) - -

Income tax expense
racognised in profit or loss 4 525 5,660 198 5

Domestic current income tax is calculated at the Malaysia statutory tax rate of 24% (2018:
24%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.
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12. Income tax expense (cont'd.)

The reconciliations between incomea tax and the product of accounting profits multiplied by
the applicable corporate tax rate for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018 are as follows:

Profit befora tax

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax
rate of 24% (2018: 24%)
Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses
Income not subject to tax
Deferred tax assets not recognised
Utilisation of previously unrecognised
deferred tax assels
Utilisation of current year's allowance
for increased export of service
Different tax rate of certain
subsidiaries
(Over)/Under provision in respect of
prior years:
- Income tax
- deferred tax
Income tax expense recognised
in profit or loss

Tax savings during the financial years arising from:

Utilisation of previously unrecognised:
Tax losses
Capital allowance

Utilisation of current year's allowance
for increased export of service

Group Company
2019 2018 2018 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
49,637 47,781 35,129 33,709
11,913 11,467 8,431 8,090
1,101 1,431 116 3
(3,698) {5,395) (8,561) (8,247)
3,401 3,707 1,959 308
(3,509) (3,593) (308) (542)
(356) (214) - .
(1,777) (1,687) - -
{576) 162 - 5
(1,874) (218) (1,438) -
4,525 5,660 198 5
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RA'ODO RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'G0D0
{3,297) (3,346) (308) {542)
(212) (247) - -
(356) (214) - -
(3,865) {3,807) (308) (542)
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13. Earnings per share
Continuing operations
(a) Basic

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the Group's profit net of tax,
attributable to equity holders of the Company of RM45132,000 (2018:
RM42,158,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the financial year, net of treasury shares, of approximately 1,238,515,000 (2018:
1,238,411,000).

(b) Diluted

Diluted eamings per share are calculated by dividing profit net of tax, attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on the convarsion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The following reflect the profit and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December:

Group
2019 2018

Profit attributable to equity helders of the Cempany (RM'000) 45,132 42,158
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ('000) 1,238,615 1,238,411
Effect of dilution ("000)

- Shares Grant Plan ("SGP") - 8563
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted

earnings per share ('0C0) 1,238,515 1,239,064
Basic earnlngs per share (sen):
Basic earnings per share for profit for the year, net of tax 3.64 3.40
Dilufed earnings per share (sen):
Diluted earnings per share for profit for the year, net of tax 3.64 3.40

Eamings per share for the preceding financial year have been adjusted for the issuance of
honus shares for comparative purposes.
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13.

14,

Earnings per share (cont'd.)

In the current financial year, nil (2018: 1,886,162} share options vested to employees (out
of total number of ESOS option of 21,922,000 allocated) under the existing employee
share option scheme that have not been included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share because they are anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 31 Dscember 2019 and 31 December 2018, the basic and diluted EPS
are the sama as the assumed conversion of the share options are anti-dilutive.

Dividends

Company
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000

Recognised during the financial year:

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Interim single tier dividend of RM0.0250 per ordinary share
paid on 12 December 2019 30,963 -

In respect of the financial vear ended 31 December 2018:

Interim single tier dividend of RM0.0275 per ordinary share

paid on 15 November 2018 - 34,058
30,863 34 059

The directors do not propose any final dividend for the financial year ended 31 December
2019,
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporatad in Malaysia)

15. Property, plant and equipment {cont'd.)

16.

(a)

During the financial year, the Group acguired property, plant and equipment at
aggregate cost of RM7,012,000 (2018: RM4,436,000) of which RM2,050,000 (2018:
RMB07,200) were acquired by means of hire purchase.

Net carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment held under hire purchase
agreements are as follows:

Group
2018 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 2,180 2,028
Motor vehicles 1,072 1,393
3,252 3,421

Details of the obligation under hire purchase are disclosed in Note 25(a).

(b) At the end of the financial year, the carrying amount of the freehold lands and buildings

()

of the Group and of the Company pledged as security for banking facilities amounted
to approximately RM41,802,000 (2018: RM42,702,000) and RM6,220,000 (2018:

RM&,297,000), respectively.

During the current financial year, a subsidiary, SEGi Assets Sdn Bhd, recognised an
impairment loss of RM926,000 (2018: nil} to write down the carrying value of its
building to the estimated fair value of the building.

Intangible assets
Development
Goodwill costs Total
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group
Cost
At 1 January 2018 35,016 7,045 42,061
Disposal of subsidiaries 17(a) (257) - (257)
At 31 December 2018/ 1 January 2019
/ 31 December 2019 34,759 7,045 41,804
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16. Intangible assets (cont'd.)

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2018
Amartisation

Al 21 December 2018

Amaortisation
Al 31 Dacember 2019

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2018
At 31 Decembar 2019

(a) impalrment testing of goodwill

Development

Goodwill costs Total

Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(7,238) (7,022) {14,260

9 - {17) {17)
{7,238) (7,039) (14,277}

9 - (3) (3}
(7,238) (7,042) (14,280)

27 521 4] 27,627

27,521 3 27,624

Goodwill arising from business combinations has been allocated to the Group's CGU
identified from the education segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on value-in-use
calculations using cash flow projections based on financial budget approved by the
Beard of Directors covering a 5-year period (2018: 5-year period).

The following are the key assumptions on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

(i) There will be no material changes in the structure and principal activities of the
Group, the budgeted gross profit margin is based on historical trend of gross

margin for the CGU.

(i There will not be any significant increase in the labour costs, adverse changes in
the economic conditions or other abnormal factors, which will adversely affect the

operations of the CGU.

(i) Pre-tax discount rate of 15% (2018: 15%) is applied in determining the recoverable
amounts of the CGU, The discount rate was estimated based on the Group's
axisting weighted averaga cost of capital.

(iv) Forecast annual growth rates of 3% - 5% (2018: 3% - 11%) are applied to the five

years cash flow projections.
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SEG International Bhd
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16. Intangible assets (cont'd.)

(a)

(b)

Impairment testing of goodwill {cont'd.)

The following are the key assumptions on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goedwill: {cont'd.)

(v} Terminal growth rate of 1% (2018: 1%) represents the growth rate applied to
extrapolate post-tax cash flow beyond the five year financiat budget period.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The management befieves that there are no reasonably possible change in any of the
above key assumptions which would cause the carrying values of the CGU to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.

Development costs

Development costs refer to costs incurred in study materials developments. As
explained in Note 2.8, the useful life of these costs is estimated to be not more than ten

years.

The amortisation of development costs is included in the "Administrative expenses” line
item in the statements of comprehensive income.

17. Investment in subsidiaries

Company
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Unquoted shares at cost:
At 1 January 88,448 86,656
ESOS options and PSP Grant shares (forfeited by the
Company) / granted to employees of subsidiaries (44) 6547
Capitalisation of capital contribution to a subsidiary™ 109 1,643
Disposal of subsidiary during the year - {500)
At 31 December 88,601 88,446
Accumulated impairment losses:
At 1 January (9,83t) (9,141)
Additions during the financial year {(Note 9) - (1,190)
Disposal during the year - 500
At 31 December (9,83%) (9,831)
78,770 78,615

* Represents fair value on below market interest loan advance to the subsidiary.
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SEG International Bhd
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17. Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd.)

The datails of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of Company
Incorporated in Malaysia:

SEGi College (KL) Sdn. Bhd.*

PDCE Resources Sdn. Bhd.**

SEGi College (PG) Sdn, Bhd.*

SEGI College (KD) Sdn. Bhd.*

SMRC Learning Alliance
Sdn. Bhd.**

SEG Equity Sdn. Bhd.**

5EG International Group
Sdn. Bhd ™

SEGI Campus Sdn. Bhd.*™
SEGI Holdings Sdn. Bhd.*
Summit Education

Sdn. Bhd. ™

Summit Early Childhcod
Edu-Care Sdn. Bhd.**

Effective
equity Interest
2019 2018
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

98.63 98.63

100 100

77

Principal activitias

Provision of professional,
commaercial and academic
education.

Provision of professional,

commercial and academic
education.

Provision of professional,
commercial and academic
education.

Provision of professional,
commercial and academic
education.

Provision of educational and
training services.

Investment holding.

Investrment holding and
provision of training and
educational services.

Property investment and
development.

Investment holding and
management consultancy.

Investmant holding and
management consultancy.

Pravision of child educational
and related services.
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

17. Investment in subsidiarles (cont'd.)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows (cont'd.).

Effective
equity interest
Name of Company 2019 2018 Principal activities
% %
Incorporated in Malayslia
(cont'd.):
Agensi Pekerjaan Job 100 100 Provision of job placement
Venture Sdn. Bhd.™ consultancy services.
PMDC Learning Alliance (EM) 100 100 Provision of management
Sdn. Bhd.** consultancy services and
investment holding.

Held through subsidiaries:

SEGI University Sdn. Bhd.* 100 100 Provision of professional,
commercial and academic
education.

SEGi EyeCare Sdn. Bhd. ™ 100 100 Provision of eye care and
optometry related services.

SMRC Learning Alliance 100 100 Provision of educational and

(KL) Sdn. Bhd.* training services.
SEGH College (Sarawak) 100 100 Operation of an educational
Sdn. Bhd.™* ingtitution for further
studies.

SEGi HealthCare Sdn. Bhd.** 100 100 Provision of medical clinic
and healthcare services.,

[FPA Resources Sdn. Bhd.** 100 100 Provision of financial planning
and financial related
courses.

SEGI Assets Sdn. Bha.™* 100 100 Property investment and
property management.

SEGI-IGS Sdn, Bhd.*™ b4 94 Provision of educational
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SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

17. Investment in subsldiaries (cont'd.)

Tha details of the subsidiaries are as follows (cont'd.):

Effactive
equity interest
Name of Company 2019 2018
Y% %
Incorporated in Malaysia
{cont'd.}:
Held through subsidiarias
(cont'd.):
SEGi College (Subang Jaya) 100 100
Sdn. Bhd.*
Summit Multimedia 81.25 B1.25
Education Sdn. Bhd.™
Binary Mark Sdn. Bhd.™ 98.63 898.63
SEGi Properties (M) 100 100
Sdn. Bhd **
SEGi DentalCare Sdn. Bhd. ™ 100 100
SEGi EduHub Sdn. Bhd.** 100 100
Metromas Realtors Sdn. Bhd.* 100 100
Consortium Support Services 100 100
Sdn. Bhd. *
Milenium Cptima Sdn. Bhd.** 100 100
Platinum lcon Sdn. Bhd.™ 100 100
Bumi Intuisi Sdn. Bhd.*™ 100 100
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Principal actlvities

Operation of institute
providing educational
programmes.

Operation of institute
providing educational
programmes.

Property invastment.

Investment propearty holding.

Provision of dental care
and training services.

Property investment and
development.

nvestment holding and
property investment.

Provision of hostels and
transportation management.

Provision of solutions and
e-community management
system.

Development of software
husiness solutions.

Software development and
provision of total online
training solution.
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SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated In Malaysia)

17. Investment in subsldiarles (cont'd.)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows (cont'd.):

Effective
equity interest
Name of Company 2019 2018 Principal actlvitles
% %
Incorporated in Republic
of Mauritius:
Worldwide Accreditation 100 100 Provision of licensing and
Lt *** accreditation of educational
programmes,
Incorporated in Republic
of China (Hong Kong):

Darson Limited** 100 100 Provision of education and
regruitment services and
other related services,

Karden Limited** 100 100 Provision of education and

recruitment services.

*  Audited by Ernst & Young PLT, Malaysia.
«  Auditad by firms of chartered accountants other than Emst 8 Young PLT.
#+  Audited by member firm of Ernst & Young Global in the respective country,

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries

On 5 September 2018, the Group disposed the following 7 subsidiaries for a cash
consideration of RM3,000 to a third party:

{iy SEGi Diversified Sdn. Bhd.;

(il SEGi Methods Sdn. Bhd.;

(i) SEGi Land (M) Sdn. Bhd.;

(iv) SEGi Youth Training Sdn. Bhd.;

(v} Pusat Kemahiran Maju Ria Sdn. Bhd.,
(vi) 1-Station Solutions Sdn Bhd.; and

(vii) Skills Malaysia INVITE Sdn. Bhd.

Upon the disposal, these 7 subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the Group's financial

statements since the Group had lost control over these subsidiaries effective on 5
September 2018,
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SEG International Bhd
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17. Investment in subsidlaries (cont'd.)

(a)

(b)

Disposal of subsidlaries {(cont'd.)

In the previous financial year, the deconsolidation of these 7 subsidiaries had the
following sffects:

Group Company

2018 2018
Note RM'000 RM'000
Congideration received 3 *
Less: Net asset (122) “
Add : Net liability deconsolidated 20 -
Less: Goodwill 16 (257) -
Loss on deconsolidation 9 (358) *
Cash flows arising from deconsolidation
Consideration received 3 *
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of deconsolidation - -
Net cash inflows on deconsolidation 3 *

*  Less than RM1,000
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries

During the financial year, the Company has carried out review of recoverable amounts
of the investments determined based on value-in-use and the key assumptions used in
calculating the recoverable amounts as described below. In the previous financial year,
based on the key assumptions applied, the recoverable amount was estimated to be
lawer than the carrying amount and an impairment loss amounting to RM1,190,000
was recognised and included in other expenses in the profit or loss.

Tha value-in-use was calculated using cash fiow projections based on financial budget
approved by the Board of Directors covering a 5 year period (2018: 5 year period).

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations are presented below:
(i) Pre-tax discount rate of 15% (2018 15%).
(i) Revenue annual growth rate of 3% to 5% (2018: 3% to 11%)

(i) Terminal growth rate of 1% (2018: 1%) represents the growth rate applied to
extrapolate posttax cash flow beyond the five year financial budget period.

The management believes that there are no reascnably possible change in any of the
above key assumptions which would cause the carrying values of the investments to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.
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18.

19.

20.

Other investment
Group
2018 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Non current:
Falr value through other comprehensive income
Quoted equity investments in Malaysia 740 820

The Group designated its investments in quoted shares as equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Inventories
Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RN'000
At lower of cost and net realisable value
Eyecare and health related products 95 102

Inventories represent eyscare and healthcare products for sale stated at lower of cost and
net realisable value.

During the financial year, the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in cost of
sales of the Group was RM188,000 (2018: RM238.000).

Receivables
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM"000 RM'000
Non-current
Non-trade
Deposits {a) 1,350 1,815 - -
Amount due from (b)
a subsidiary - - 21,772 21,772
1,350 1,815 21,772 21,772
Current
Trade
Trade receivables (c) 24,278 21,943 - -
Less: Write-off g - {6,256) - -
Less: Allowance for ECL (2,372) (3,577) - -

21,906 12,110 - -
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SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

20. Receivables (cont'd.)

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'0OD RM'000
Non-trade
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments (a) 3195 10,462 1,478 086
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 37,840 40,341
Total current trade and other
receivables 31,101 22,672 39,318 41,327
Total trade and other receivables
(nen-current and current) 32,451 24,387 61,080 63,099
Add: Deposits, cash and bank
bajances 23 58,692 53,669 25,502 20,127
Less: Prepayments (4,820) (4,091} (284) (403)
Total financial assets carried
at amortised cost 86,323 73,065 86 298 82 823

(a) Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

In the previous financial year, included in other receivables are amounts due from a
company which a director has interest ("DRC") amounting to RM1,647,851. The
amounts arose from cost sharing arrangements between the Group and the DRC and
the amounts had been fully recovered subseguent to the year end.

{b) Amounts due from subsidiarles

Company
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Interest bearing 59,6837 62,014
Non-interest bearing 75 99
59,612 62,113

The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured and receivable
on demand. The interest bearing portion bore an effective interest rate of 1% to 5%
(2018; 1% to 5%) per annum.
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SEG International Bhd
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20. Recelvables (cont'd.)

{b) Amounts due from subsidiaries {cont'd.)

(c)

Amount due from subsidiaries that are impaired

The Company applies tha simplified approach whereby allowance for impairment are

measured at lifetime ECL. Mavement in allowance for ECL:

Company
Individually impalred
2018 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Other receivables - nominal amounts 8,297 8,297
Less: Allowance for ECL (8,297) (8,297)
Movernent in allowance for ECL:
Company
2019 2018
Mote RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 8,297 8,470
Charge for the year 8 - 619
Write-off - (792)
At 31 December B,297 8,297

Amount due from subsidiaries that are individually determined to be impaired at the
reporting date relate to subsidiaries that are in significant financial difficulties and have
defaulted on payments. These amount due from subsidiaries are not secured by any

collateral or cradit enhancements.

Trate recelvables

The normal trade credit terms granted by the Group ranged from 30 to 180 days (2018:
30 to 180 days). They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent
their fair values on initial recognition. Other credit terms are assessed and appraved on
a case-by-case basis. The Group recognises a loss allewance based on lifetime ECL at

each reporting date.
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20. Receivables (cont'd.)

(¢} Trade receivables (cont'd.)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables is as follows:

Group
2019 2018
RM"000 RM"000
Neither past due nor impaired 21,906 12,110
Write-off - 8,256
Impaired 2,372 3,577
24278 21,043

Trade receivables that are neither past dus nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with
good payment records with the Group. Most of the Group's trade receivables arise
from students under the Perbadanan Tabung Pendidikan Tinggi Nasional {"PTPTN")
loan scheme.

None of the Group's trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
been renegotiated during the financial year.

Trade receivables that are impaired

The Group's trade receivables that are impaired at the reporting date and the
movement of the allowance for ECL used to record the impairment are as follows:

Individualily impaired

201% 2018
RM'000 RM'000

Group
Trade receivables - nominal amounts 2,372 3,577
l.ess: Allowance for ECL (2,372) (3,577)
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20. Recelvabiles (cont'd.)
{c) Trade receivables (cont'd.)

Movement in allowance for ECL:

2019 2018

Note RM'00D RM'000

At 1 January 3,577 248
Effect of MFRS 9 adoption - 7680
At 1 January, restated 3,577 1,008
(Reversal)/Charge for the year 9 (1,205) 2,685
Write-off - {118)
At 31 December 2,372 3,577

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reparting date
relate to debtors that are in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on
payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit

enhancements.

21. Right-of-use assets and lease liabllitles

Group and Company as a Lessee

The Group and the Company have lease contracts for various items of plant, property and
equipment used in its operations. Leases of property generally have lease terms between 1
and B years, while plant and equipment generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years.
The Group's and the Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's
fitle to the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options and variable lease paymaents, which are further discussed below.

The Group and the Company also have certain leases of equipment with lease terms of 12
months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Group applies the 'short-
term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exempticns for these leases.
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21. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (cont'd.)

(a) Right-of-use assets

Set out below are tha carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the

movements during the year,

Group

At 1 January 2019

Effect of adoption of MFRS 16
At 1 January 2019 (restated)
Additions

Depreciation expense

At 31 Dacember 2019

Cormpany

At 1 January 2019

Effect of adoption of MFRS 16
At 1 January 2019 (restated)
Depreciation expanse

At 31 December 2019

Note

2.2

2.2

9

lLeasehold
land and
Property others Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
131,436 5,350 136,786
131,436 5,350 138,786
7,784 - 7,784
(21,580) {124) (21,714)
117,630 5,226 122,656
106,784 - 105,784
105,784 - 105,784
(13,558) - (13,556)
92,228 - 892,228

The leases of properties are mainly used for the Group's educaticn operations and as

offices.
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21. Right-of-use assets and lease [labllities {cont'd.)

(b) Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year:
[ Group ~r---------mmmmm- | Company
Property Hire
leases purchase Total
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'200
Note 25{a)
At 1 January 2019 - - - -
Effect of adoption of
MFRS 18 2.2 144,270 1,267 145,637 111,628
At 1 January 2019
{As restated) 144,270 1,267 145,537 111,628
Additions during the year 7,784 2,050 9,834 -
Interest expense 8 7,484 - 7 484 5,630
Payments of principal (28,592) (1,035) (29,627) (18,461)
At 31 December 2019 130,846 2,282 133,228 08,797
Current 23,283 13,540
Non-current 108,945 85,257
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 35,
The following are tha anounts recognised in profit or loss:
Group Company
2019 2019
RM'000 RW'000
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (Note 9) 21,714 13,656
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 8) 7,484 5,630
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 29 198 19,188

The future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed

in Note 32.

22. Other financial asset

Current:
Fair value through profit or loss
Investment securities

Investment securities reprasent investment in mutual fund.
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Group/Company
2019 218
RM'000 RM'000
273 289
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23. Deposits, cash and bank balances

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Short-term deposits with

financial institutions 15,056 7,503 15,056 7,503
Cash and bank balances (a) 38,508 37,499 5471 4,107

Fixed deposits with licensed
banks {b) 5,130 8,667 4,975 8,517
58,692 53,669 25,502 20,127

(a) At reporting date bank balance of the Group and Company, RM19,932,810 (2018:

(b)

RM18,796,549) and RM5,311,911 (2018: RM4,248,204), respectively are placed under
an Automated Sweep Agresment ("Automated Sweep") with licensed banks. The
overnight placement of the funds following the Automated Sweep, bears an average
interest at 1.4% (2018: 1.4%) per annum,

Fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company amounting to
RM5,130,000 (2018: RM5,087,000) and RM4,975000 (2018: RM4 217,000)
respectively are pledged for bank guarantee facilities for lease rental granted to the
Group and the Company.

The weighted average effective interest rales ("WAEIR") as at the reporting date and
the remaining maturities of the Group's and of the Company's deposits with licensed
banks and licensed financial institutions are as follows:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
WAEIR (%) 3.08 2.71 310 2,72
Average maturities (Months) 1-16 1-16 1-16 1-16

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the

following as at the reporting date:

Group Company

2019 2018 20158 2018

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Deposits, cash and bank balances 58,692 53,669 25,502 20127

Less.
Daposits with licensed banks

with maturity of more than

three months (5,130) (8,667) {4,975) (8,517)

Total cash and cash equivalents 53,562 45,002 20,527 11,610
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24. Provisions

Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
At January - -
Provisions during the year 519 -
At 31 December 819 -

Included in the provisions are pravision for the estimated costs of dismantiement, removal
or restoration of property, plant and equipment arising from the use of such assets, which
are capitalised and included in right-of-use assets.

25. Borrowings

Grougp Company
2018 2018 2019 2018
Nate RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Non-current:
Secured
Hire purchase liabilities {a) - 631 - -
Term loan (b} 16,250 25,250 16,250 25,250
16,250 25,881 16,250 25,250
Current:
Secured
Hire purchase liabilities (a) - 636 - -
Term loan (k) 9,000 9,000 8,000 9,000
9 000 8,638 9,000 8,000
25,250 35517 25250 34 250
(a) Hire purchase liabilities
Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RM"000
Minimum lease payments:
- repayable within 1 year 1,072 697
~ rapayable hetween 1 yaar to 5 years 1372 §72
2,444 1,369
Less: Future finance charges {182) (102)
Present value (Note 21(b)) 2,282 1,267
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25. Borrowings (cont'd.)

() Hire purchase {lablilitles (cont'd.)

The net hire purchase liabilities are repayable as follows:

Group

2019 2018
RM'D(0 RM'000

Nen-currant:
- repayable between 1 year to 5 years 1,312 631

Current:

- not later than 1 year 870 536
2,282 1,267

The hire purchase liabilities at the end of the reporting period bore effective interest
rates ranging from 4.53% to 9.47% (2018: 4.5% to 6.4%) per annum.

(b) Term Loan

Group/Company
2019 2018
RM'G00 RM'000
Non-current:
Sacured
- repayable between 1 year to 2 years 9,000 9,000
- repayable between 2 to 5 years 7,290 16,250
16,250 25,250
Current:
Secured
- repayable within 1 year 9,000 g,000
25,250 34,250

During the current financial year, the term loan bore a weighted average effective
interest rate of 5.48% (2018: 5.55%) per annum.

The term loan is secured by the legal mortgage of certain leasehold buildings of the
Group as disclosed in the Note 15.
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198501013542 (145598-U)

SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

26. Payablas

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM"'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Non-current
Non-trade
Deposits 2,671 4,060 2,324 1,068
Current
Trade
Trade payables (a) 260 a7 - -
Non-trade
Other payables and accruals 56,436 58,050 1,382 2,749
Amounts due to
subsidiaries {b) - - 25,033 18,116
56,436 58,050 28,415 20,865
56,696 58,137 26,415 20,865
Total trade and other payables
(current and non-current) 53,367 62,197 28,738 21,933
Add: Borrowings 25 25,250 35517 25,250 34,250
Add: Lease liahilities 21(p) 133,228 - 98,797 -
Total financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost 217,845 97,714 152,786 56,183

(a) Trade payables

The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group ranged from 30 to 80 days (2018: 30
to 90 days).

(h) Amounts due to subsidiaries
The amounts due to subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The foreign currency exposure profile of the amounts due to the
subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as follow:

Company
2019 2018
RM'C00 RM'Q00
United States Dollar ("USD") 4,075 4,134
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SEG International Bhd
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27. Contract liabilities

Group
2019 2018

RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 32,632 -
Adjustment on initial application of MFRS 15 - 24,288
At 1 January (restated) 32,632 24,289
Deferred during the year 195,882 181,591
Recognised as revenua during the year (187,521) (173,348)
At 31 December 30,963 32,532
Fees recelved In advance
Current 29,687 31,623
Non-current 1,308 809

30,883 32,532

In the prior year, contract liabilities were referred as fees received in advance and included in
payables as disclosed in Note 26,

28. Deferred tax assets/{liabilities)

Deferred tax as at 31 December relates to the following:

As at1 Recognised As at31 Recognised As at 31
January in profit December in profit  December
2018 or loss 2018 or loss 2019
RM'000 RM'000 RM'00D RM 000 RM'000
Group
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed capital
allowances 1,119 (590) 029 638 1,167
Unused tax losses 2,194 79 2,273 {1,655) 718
Other temporary
differences 3,646 3244 6,890 {1,253) 5837
6,958 2,733 0,692 {2,170) 7,522
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and
equipment (4,348) 19 (4,327} 3,074 {(1,253)
2813 2.752 5,365 504 6,269
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SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated in Malaysla)

28. Defarrad tax assets/(liabilities) {cont'd.)

Deferred tax as at 31 December ralates to the following:

As at1 Recognised As at 31 Recognised Az at 31
January in profit December inprofit  December
2018 or loss 2018 or loas 2019
RM'000 RM'000 RW'000 RM'000 RM'000
Company
Defarred tax asseots
Unabsorbed capital
allowances 741 (345) 306 771 1,167
Unused tax losses 1,138 341 1,480 {(771) 709
1,880 {4) 1,876 - 1,876
Defarred tax lHability
Property, plant and
equipment (307) 4 (303) - (303)
1,573 - 1,573 - 1,573
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Presented after appropriate
offsetting as follows:

Deferred tax assets 7,522 9,692 1,573 1,673
Deferred tax liability {1,253) (4,327} - -
8,269 5,365 1,673 1,673

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Unused tax losses 41,816 41,817 1,684 1,283

Unabsoried capital allowances 4,346 3,694 - -

Unutilised tax cradit 748 748 - -
Other deductible temporary '

differences 11,883 13,063 8,560 -

58,873 50 322 8,163 1,283
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

28.

28.

30.

Deferred tax assets/{llabllities) (cont'd.)

The above deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to uncertainty of its
recaverability.

The availability of unutilised tax losses for offsetting against future taxable profits of a
subsidiary in Malaysia is subject to no substantial changes in the shareholding of the
subsidiary under the income Tax Act 1967 and guidelines issued by the tax authority. With
effect from year of assessment (YA) 2018, unutilised business losses arising from a YA is
allowed to only be carried forward frem YA 2018 for utilisation up to 7 consecutive YAs from
that YA. In addition, any accumulated unabsorbed business losses brought forward from YA
2018 shall be allowed to be utilised for 7 consecutive YAs (i.e. until YA 2025).

Share capital

Group/Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
'000 '000 RM'0D0 RM'000

Ordinary shares:

Issued and fully paid-up
Ordinary shares 1,264,563 1,264,246 147,707 147,503
New shares issued under

the amployee share

option scheme - 317 - 204
At 31 Decemnber 1264 563 1,264,563 147,707 147 707

The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as
and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without
restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Treasury shares

There were no new treasury shares which were purchased in the previous and current
financial year. Details of the balance of the treasure shares are as follows:

Cost of

No of shares

shares RM’000

At 31 Decamber 2018/1 January 2019/31 December 2019 26,048,600 37,486
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SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

31. Reserves

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

(Accumulated losses)/

Retained profits (a) (18,547) (19,725) 669 2,545
Fair value reserve of

financial assets at

FVOCI (b} {200} (120) - -
Exchange translation
reserve {c) ] o3 - -
Share-based payment
reserve {d) 1,969 1,991 1,989 1,981
{18,769) {17,761) 2,638 4536

(a)

(b}

(c)

{d)

Retained profits

The Company may distribute dividends out of its entire retained profits as at 31
Dacember 2019 and 31 December 2018 under the single tier system.

Fair value reserve of financlal assefs at FVYOCI

The fair value reserve of financial assets at FVQCI represents the cumulative fair value
changes, net of tax, of debt instruments at fair vaiue through OCI until they are disposed

of or impaired.

Exchange translation raserve

Tha foraign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from that of the Group's presantation currency.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve represents the equity-settied share options granted (refer
definition of grant date below) to employees. The reserve is made up of the cumulative
value of services received from employees recorded over the vesting period
commencing from the grant date of equity-settled share options and is reduced upon the
expiry or exercise of the share options.
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SEG International Bhd
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31. Resarves (cont'd.)
(d) Share-based payment reserve {cont'd.)

According to MFRS 2, a grant date is the date at which the entity and another party
(including an employee) agrea to a share-based payment arrangement, being when the
sntity and the counterparty have a shared understanding of the terms and conditions of
the arrangement. At the grant date the entity confers on the counterparty the right to
equity instruments of the entity, provided the specified vesting conditions, if any, are
met. If that agreement is subject to an approval process (for example, by shareholders)
grant date is the date when approval is obtained. Hence, under the MFRS 2, an option is
granted upon share option contract being entered, regardless whether at the material
time the option has yet vested on the employese.

The movements in share-based payment reserve of the Group and of the Company are

as follows:

Group/Company

RM'000

At 1 January 2018 1,763
Share-based payment expense during the year 376
Under provision of share-based payment expense in prior years 56
PSP Grant granted (204)
At 31 December 2018 1,991
Share-based payment axpense during the year 224
Over provision of share-based payment expense in prior years (246)
At 31 Decembar 2019 1,969

(i) The main features of the Company's Employee Share Option Scheme ("ESOS") are
outlined below:

- The maximum number of new ordinary shares in the Company which may be
issued upon the exercise of the ESOS shall not exceed 15% of the issued and
paid-up share capital (excluding treasury shares, if any) of the Company at any
point of time throughout the duration of the ESOS.

- Ful-time executives of the Group and executive directors of the Company in

employment with the Company and its subsidiary companies which are not
darmant shall be eligible to participate in the ESOS.
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SEG International Bhd
{Incorporated In Malaysia)

31. Reserves (cont'd.}
(d) Share-based payment raserve (cont'd.)

(i} The main features of the Company's Employee Share Option Scheme ("ESOS") are
outlined below: (cont'd.)

- The maximum number of options that may be cffered to an Eligible Person
shall be determined at the discretion of the Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP")
Committee after taking into cansideration, amongst others and where relevant,
the performance, contribution, employment grade, seniarity and length of
service of the Eligible Person, subject to the following:

-  The executive directors and senior management do not participate in the
deliberation or discussion of their own allocation,;

- The allocation to an Eligible Person, who either individually or collectively,
through persons connected to the Eligible Person, hotds 20% or more of
the issued and paid-up share capitai of the Company (excluding treasury
shares, if any), must not exceed 10% of the new shares available under
the LTIP; and

- Not more than 60% of the new shares available under tha LTIP shall be
allocated in aggregate to the executive directors and senior management
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The option price shall be the five-day weighted average market price of the
Company's shares immediately preceding the date of the offer, with a discount of
not more than 10% or such other percentage of discount as may be permitted by
Bursa Securities and/or any ather relevant authorities from time to time at the LTIP
Committee's discretion or the par value of the shares of the Company, whichever is
the higher.

The ESOS shall be in force for a period of 10 years from the effective date (1 July
2014) for the implementation of the E50S.

Details of the ESOS options granted in accordance to MFRS 2 are as follows:
As at 31 December 2019, the Company has an allocation of 22 million (2018: 25
million) ESOS options that are made available to efigible employees of the Group.

The vesting of these allocations to the employees are subject to certain vesting
conditions and the sole discretion of the LTIP Commitiee.
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SEG International Bhd
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31. Reserves {conf'd.}
(d) Share-based payment reserve (cont'd.)

(i) The main features of the Company's Employee Share Option Schems ("ES0S") are
outlined below (cont'd.):

Details of the ESOS options granted in accordance to MFRS 2 are as follows
(cont'd.).

The following table illustrates the movements in the allocations of share options
during the financial year:

ESOS optlon allocations

and grant
2019 2018
000D '000
At 1 January 24 965 28,488
Granted in accordance to MFRS 2 - 12,825
Vested during the year - (1,8886)
Forfeited during the year (3,038) (14,462)
At 31 December 21,928 24 065

The fair value of share options granted as at the grant date, is determined using the
Binomial option pticing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The inputs to the model used are as foilows:

ESOS

options

2018

Dividend yield (%) 4.11
Expectaed volatility (%) 2146
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.96
Exercise share price (RM) 0.66

The expectad life of the option is based on historical date and is not necassarily
indicative of exercise pattern that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumptions that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends which may aiso
not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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{Incorporated in Malaysia)

31. Reserves (cont'd.)
(d) Share-based payment reserve (cont'd.)

(i) Shares Grant Plan ("SGP")

SGP is intended to allow the Company to award the Performance Share Plan
("PSP") Grant to selected Eligible Persons of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
PSP Grant is an annual grant to incentivise the Eligible Persons towards the
attainment of the long-term success and growth of the Company and its
substdiaries.

Upon acceptance of the PSP Grant by the selected Eligible Persons, the Eligible
Person will be entitled to participate in the SGP where shares may be vested with
the PSP Granteas at no cost over a period of up to 10 years upon fulfiiment of
vesting conditions, whereby the selected Eligible Persons will be assessed based
on, amengst others, individual performance and the fulfilment of yearly parformance
targets andfor criteria set and the overali financial performance of the Group, in
accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated and determined by the LTIP
Committes at its discration. The vesting of the PSP Grant is at the LTIP
Committee's sole discretion.

The LTIP Committee may in its absolute discretion decide that the ordinary share in
the Company ("SEGi Shares") to be awarded to the selected Eligible Persons be

satisfied by the following methods:

- |ssuance of new SEGi Shares;
- Acquisition of existing SEGIi Shares from the Main Market of Bursa Securities;

- Any other methods as may be permitted by the Companias Act 2018, as
amended from time to time and any re-enactment therecf, or
- A combination of any of the above.

The following table fllustrates the movements in PSP Grant allocation during the
financiai year:

PSP Grant allocatlons and

grant

2019 2018

'000 ‘000
At 1 January 4,210 4 900
Granted in accordance to MFRS 2 - 343
Vested during the year - {317)
Forfeited during the year (665) (7186)
At 31 December 3,548 4,210
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SEG International Bhd
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32. Commitments and contingencies

(a)

(h)

Caplital commitments

Authorised caplital expenditure not provided for in the financial statements:

Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Approved and contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment - 1,436

Operating lease commitments

As lessee

In the previous financial year, the Group and the Company have entered into non-
cancellable operating lease agresments for the use of premises and equipment. These
leases have an average lease terms of between one and ten years with renewal option
included in contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the Group and the Company
by entering into these leases.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
contracted for as at reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Group Company

2018 218
RM'D00 RM'000

Future minimum rentals payable:
Not later than 1 year 25,028 19,749
Later than 2 years and not (ater than 5 years 890,779 80,260
Later than 5 years 43,6827 43,065
159,435 143,074
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SEG International Bhd
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32. Commitments and contingencies (cont'd.)
(b) Operating lease commitments (cont'd.)
Ag lassor
The Company has entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreements on its
leased premises. These leases have remaining (ease terms of between one and seven

years with renewal option included in contracts.

The future aggregate minimum |lease raceivable under non-cancellable operating lease
contracted for as at reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Company
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Future minimum rentals receivable:
Not later than 1 year 16,498 16,498
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 50,938 57,436
Later than 5 years 3,008 4,131
70,534 88,065
(¢} Guarantees
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM"000 RM'000
Guarantees
Secured:
Bank guarantees 25 73 - -
Unsecured.
Bank guarantees 26,720 26,672 26,672 26,672
26,745 28,745 26,672 26 672

Bank guarantees are secured by fixed deposits with licensed banks as disclosed in Note
23.
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33. Related party disclosures
Significant related party transactions

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company also carried
out the following transactions with the related parties during the financial years:

Company
2019 2018
(Income)/expenses Note RM'000 RM'000
Sale of services to subsidiaries:
- managemant fee 4 (5,927) (9,527}
- maintenance fee {(552) (552)
- rental of premises (18,043) (17,432)
- service charge (180) (180)
- accounting fee 7 (960) (960)
Interest income from subsidiaries 6 {(2,202) {891)
Dividend income from subsidiaries 4 (35,664) (34,211)
Acquisition of services from subsidiaries:
- accreditation fee 8,573 8,380
- maintenance fee 1,096 -
- managermant fee 5 3,662 3,289

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are disclosed in Note 20(b) and Note 26(b).

Tha directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above transactions are entered into
in the normal course of business and based on negotiated and mutually agreed terms.

Key management personnel are dafined as those perscns having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controliing the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly.
The key management personnel includes all the Directors of the Group, and certain
members of senior management of the Group.
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33. Related party disclosures (cont'd.)
Significant related party transactions (cont'd.)

Compensation of key management personneil:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'G00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Directors of the Company:
- fee 266 266 266 268
- remunsration 807 748 807 748
- defined contribution plan 81 86 81 86
1,154 1,100 1,154 1,100
Other key management
personnal:
~ salary and other short-term
employee benefits 2,031 1,995 488 475
- defined contribution plan 238 239 59 57
2,269 2,234 547 532
Total 3,423 3,334 1,701 1,632

34. Falr value of financial instruments

{(a) Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying
amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value:

Note
Receivables (non-current and current) 20
Depaosits, cash and bank balances 23
Borrowings (non-current and current) 25
Payables (non-current and current) 26

107



198501013542 (145998-U)

SEG International Bhd
(Incorporated In Malaysia)

34. Fair value of financial instruments {cont'd.}

(b} Fair value measurements

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of the
following classes of financial instruments:

(i)

(ii}

(i)

Deposits, cash and bank balances, recelvables, pavables and borrowings

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable
approximation of fair values, either due to their shont-terrn nature or that they are
floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market inlerest rates on or near the

reporting data.

The camying amounts of the loans and borrowings are reasonable approximations
of fair values due to the insignificant impact of discounting.

Quoted investments

The fair value of quoted investments is determined by reference to stock exchange
quotad market bid prices at the close of the business at the reporting date. -

Amount due from/(to} subsidiaries

The Company does not anticipate the carrying amounts recorded at the reporting
date that would eventually be received or settled to ba significantly different from the
fair values as the amounts are repayable on demand.

Fair value hierarchy analysis

The Group has carried its quoted investment and other financial asset that are classified
as debt instruments at fair value through OCI and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss respectively at their fair values. The quoted investment and other financial
asset belong to Leve! 1 and Level 2 respectively of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers between any levels of the fair value hierarchy during the
financial year. There were also no changes in the purpose of any financial instruments
that subsequently resulted in a different classification.

35. Financial risk management objectives and pollcies

The Group's and the Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade
and other payables. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the Group's
and the Company's operaticns. The Group's and the Company's principal financial assets
include trade and other receivables and cash and short term deposits that derive directly
from its operations. The Group and the Company also hold financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss.
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies {cont'd.)

The Group and the Company are exposed to market risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The
Group's and the Company's management oversees the management of these risks. The
Group's senior managament is supported by Audit Commitiee that provides independent
oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management process. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summatised below.

{a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's and the
Company's exposure to tha risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to
the Group’s and the Company's operating activiies (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a forsign currency} and the Group's net investments in foreign

subsidiaries.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's and of the Company's
profit net of tax to a reasonably possible change of 10% of respective foreign currencies
against the functional currency, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity
analysis includes significant outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
with their translation at year end adjusted for a 10% change in foreign exchange rates
as at the end of the financial year, as disclosed in Note 20 and Note 26.

Decrease/(increase)

Group/Company
Profit net of tax
2019 2018

RM'000 RM'000
Strengthen by 10%
United State Dollar 1,646 1,711
Waeaken by 10%
United State Dollar (1,648) {1,711)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to

the Group's long term debt obligation with floating interest rates. The Group's policy is to
manags interest rate risk by using a mix of fixed and variable rate foan and borrowings,
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies {cont'd.)

{b)

(c}

Interest rate risk (cont'd.}

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate rigk

The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the
interest rates at the end of the reporting perad, with all other variables held constant:

Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Effects on profit net of tax
Increase of 100 basis points (275) (355)
Decrease of 100 basis points 275 355

Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's and the Company's exposurs to
credit risk arises primarily from frade and other receivables. For other financial assets,
deposits, cash and bank balances, the Group and the Company minimise credit risk by
dealing exclusively with high cradit rating counterparties. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month ECL.

The Group establishes an allowance for ECL that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of the tfrade and other receivables as appropriate. The main
components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually
significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar
assets in respect of losses that have been incurred hut not yet identified. Impairment is
estimated by management based on prior experience and the current economic
environment.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the deblors profile of
ite trade receivables on an on-going basis. At 31 December 2019, approximately 61%
(2018: 75%) of the Group's trade recaivables were due from students under the PTPTN

loan scheme.

Exposure to cradit risk

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets at the reporting date.
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd.)

(¢)

(d)

Cradit risk (cont'd.)

Financial assets that are neither past dus nor impaired

Information regarding trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is
disclosed in Note 20. Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institutions is
managed by the Group's treasury depariment in accordance with the Group's policy.
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions that are neither past due nor
impaired are only placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions or
companies with high credit ratings and no history of default.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosad in
Note 20.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity rick is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in
meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group's and the Company's
exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial

assets and liabilities.
Excassive risk concentration

Corncentrations arise when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that
would cause thelr ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Group's and of the Company's performance to developments affacting
a particular industry,

In order to avold excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures

include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.
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35. Financlal risk management objectlves and policles (cont'd.)
(d} Liquidity risk (cont'd.)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's and of the Company's
labillties at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:

| 2019 |
On demand
or within One to five Mare than
one year yaars five years Total
Note RM'D00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group
Financial liabilitles:
Lease liabilities 21(k) 28,703 83,219 43,953 155,875
Trade and other 26 56,6896 2,671 - 59,367
payables
Hire purchase 25(a) 1,072 1,372 - 2,444
liabilities
Term loan 10,073 16,934 - 27007
Total undiscounted
financizl
liabilities 06,544 104,196 43,853 244 693
Company
Financial liabilities:
Lease liabilitles 21(p) 18,461 58,789 43,065 120,315
Other payables 26 26,415 2,324 - 28,739
Term lcan 10,073 16,834 - 27,007
Total undiscounted
financial
liabilities 54,949 78,047 43,065 176,061
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35. Financlal risk management objectives and policles (cont'd.)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont'd.)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (cont'd.)

Note

Group
Financial liabilities:
Trade and ather payables 26
Hire purchase llabilities 25(a)
Term loan
Total undiscounted financial

liakilities
Comparny
Financial liabilities:
Other payables 26
Term loan
Total undiscounted financial

liabilities

36. Capital management

| 2018
On demand
or within One to five
one year years Total
RM'00Q RM'000 RM"000
58,137 4 060 62,197
697 672 1,369
10,584 27,034 37618
59,418 31,766 101,184
20,865 1,068 21,933
10,584 27.034 37618
31,448 28,102 59,551

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entifies within the Group will be able to
maintain an optimal capital structure so as to support their businesses and maximises
sharehoiderg’ value. To achieve this objective, the Group may make adjustments to the
capital structure in view of changes in economic conditions, such as adjusting the amount of
dividend payment, returning of capital to shareholders or issuing new shares.

The Group and the Company manage their capital based on debt-to-equity ratio. The
Group's strategies were unchanged from the previous financial year. The debt-to-equity ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as borrowings plus

payables less fees received in advance and deposits, cash and kank balances.

The Group and the Company are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirement.
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36.

37,

Capltal management (cont'd.)

Note
Borrowings 25
Lease liakilities 21{b}
Payables 26
Less:
Deposits, cash and

bank balances 23

Net debts

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio with
lease liabilities

Gearing ratio excluding
lease liabilities

Operating segments

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
25,250 35,517 25,250 34,250
130,248 - 98,797 -
59,367 62,197 28,739 21,933
{58,692) {53,669) (25,502) (20,127}
156,871 44,045 127,284 36,058
93,452 92,460 112,858 114,757
250,323 136,505 240,143 150,813
63% N/A 53% N/A
22% 32% 20% 24%

Segmental reporting is not presented as the Group is principally engaged in the provision of
educational activities, which is substantially within a single business segment and operates

wholly In Malaysia.
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38.

39.

Subsequent event

Subsequent to the financial year end, the World Health Organization (WHQ) had on March
11 declared Covid-19 a pandemic and there has since baen growing concerns on the effects
of the Covid-19 pandemic globally. On 18 March 2020, the Government of Malaysia imposed
a Movement Control Order (*MCO") which invalves movement restrictions for locals and
restrictions on foreigners from entering the country.

The restrictions imposed on foreigners affect the Group's new international studants’ arrival
to Malaysia and the Group's campuses. At the meantime, local students are not able to enter
the Group's campuses during the MCO. Notwithstanding the challenges, the Group
continues to recruit students and conduct courses online based on planned schedules and
students have full access to the lecturers and suppart team.

With the concerns of tha pandemic and various restrictions currently imposed in many
nations, the economy of the varlous nations and additional restrictions which may be
imposed from time ta time (if any), including Malaysia, are expected to be adversely affected.
This may subsequently affect, among others, the ability of some students to commence,
continue and complete their higher education studies with the Group owing to financial or
movement constraints. The direct and indirect impact arising from this pandemic on the
Group's businesses, assets and liabilities cannot be reasonably estimated at this juncture.

Comparatives

The presentation and classification in the current financial statements have been consistent
with the previous financial year except for certain comparatives which have baen reclassifiad
to conform with current year's presentation.
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